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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY aeen

BEFORE THE ADMINISTRATOR
IN THE MATTER OF

DUO WATER WORKS, DOCKET NO. SDWA-III-006

)
)
)
)
 RESPONDENT _ )

ORDER GRANTING MOTION FOR PARTIAL
“ACCELERATED DECISION

This civil penalty proceeding under § 1414 of the Safe
Drinking Water Act (SDWA), 42 U.S.C. § 300g-3, was initiated on
December 29, 1988 by the filing of a complalnt by the Dlrector of
the Water Management Division, EPA Region I1I, charglng Respondent,
Duo Water Works (Duo)’, with violation of an administrative order
issued pursuant to Section 1414 (g) (1) of the Act.V . The complaint
included findings that Duo’s water system located in Rupert,
Greenbrier County, West Virginia, is a system for the provision to
the public of piped water for human consumption, that Duo’s water

system was supplied by a ground water source, that the system has

.approximately 15 service connections and serves approximately 65

individuals "year~round". Therefore, the complaint alleged that

Duo is a public water system within the meaning of SDWA § 1401(4)

V. . The complaint was served on a Mr. Cecil Wayne Lilly by a
Deputy Sheriff of Greenbrier County, West Virginia, on April 20,

.'1989 (Complainant’s Prehearing [CPH] Ex. 30).. A Status Report by
Complainant, dated April 19, 1991, states that the last person to-.

take any responsibility for operation of the system was Mr. Lilly’s

~ father who had passed away.-'The delay in service was apparently

due to difficulty in locating a representative of Respondent
respon51ble for: operatlon of the systen.
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and a comﬁunity water system as defined‘inﬂdo CFR § 141.2.¢ For
this alleged'violafion,.it was proposed to assess Duo a penaity of

$5,000, the maximum permitted in an édministratiVe.proceeding.y
Duo, ﬁhrough counsel, ssrved an answer under date of
May 12, 1989, The .answer asserted that Respondent 1lacked
sufficient knswledée'to admit or denf the allegations in the
complaint, denied that there was an'éntity'known as “Dus.Water
Works" and requested an ihformai hearing. The matter was not
forwarded to the Chief Judge for assignmeht of an ALJ until
June 11, 1990. | _
| It appeafs that Respondent acquired title to the water .
system identified in the complaint  in 1959. Sse the,deed.from'
'Gaulej Coal Land Compahy, a West Virginia Corporation, conveying
kdescribed -land. in Duo, known as the Water Plant Lot"and
imbrovements'thereon, to named trusﬁees of Duo“Water Works, a

cooperative associatién,'dated November 14, 1959 (CPH Ex. 1). The

4 Section 1401(4) of the Act defines a "public water system“
as a system for the provision of plped water for human consumption,
if such system has at least 15 service connections or regularly
serves at least 25 individuals. A “communlty ‘water system" as
defined by 40 CFR § 141.2 means a public water system which serves
at least 15 service connections used by year-round residents or at
least 25 year-round residents. All references to the Code of
Federal Regulations are to the version in effect on July 1, 1988.

3/ SDwWA § 1414(g) (3) (B), 42 U.S.C.§ 300g-3(g)(3)(B). SDWA §
1401(1) provides that "primary drinking water regulation" means a
regulation which, inter alia, applies to public water systems.
Public water systems .are defined in SDWA § 1401(4) (supra note 2).
SDWA § 1414 (g) (1) authorizes the Administrator to issue an order to
require compliance with such [primary drinking water] regulatlon.
Part 141 of Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations is. entltled
"National Primary Drlnklng Water Regulatlons"'
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record contains a copy of a letter' ffom the West Virginia
' Department of Health, dated May 2, 1977, informing Duo that it had
failed fo submit [water] sampleS'fof bacteriological analysis and
‘operational reports on a monthly basis as required by Public Water
Supply Regulations (CPH Ex. 3).' A similar letter from ’the
-Depar;ment of Health, dated May 23, 1978 (CPH Ex. 5), warned Duo
that it was subject to a penalty for willful failure to comply with
the -fegulations requiring the submission of monthly operating
reports. The mentioned correspondence was addressed to Duo in care
of Mr. Sandy Lilly, Rupert, West Virginia.

Additionaily, Duo was on 1lists, published by the
’Department. of Health, of public .water snppiie(f)s failiné to
.monitor, coilect and test water samples for nicrobiolegical
contaminants for the'quarters endinq June 30 and September 30, 1981
- (CPH Exs. 7 & 8). Duo was ordered to commence collectlon and
submission of water samples by letter, dated June 30, 1982 (CPH EX.
10), and apparently did so,'because by letter, addressed to Duo in
care_of Mr. Brian-Foley, Rupert, West Virginia, dated November 22,
1982, Duo was ‘informed that its most recent compliance report
revealed that its water supply was in violation of microbiological
and/or turbidity maximum contaminant levels (MCLs) (CPH Ex. 11).
Duo was instructed that it ~must 1nform 1ts customers of the
v1olat10n by prescrlbed methods and was requested to provide a copy
of the public notlce of the violation to the Department of Health. -

Duo was on a published list of water suppllers which

faiiedvto monitor,for microbiological contaminants for the quarter
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ending Deéember 31, 1994 (Public' Notice, dated February 8, 1985,
CPH Ex. 12). A Boil Water Advisory, dai:ed. Sep_tembér 18, 1984,
issued by the West Virginia Department of Health, which advises _a11
custc‘omers of the Duo water system to lboil '-drihkim'; water, is in the
' record }(CPH Ex. _15‘)'. The advisory was based ﬁpon Duo’s failure. to
properly chlorinate the water and to subnit bacteriological samples |
[for -testing']‘, conditions which were deemed to constitute a
potential heallth hazard. A violations summary for the Duo Water
Sys'tem., ‘covering the period Jahuary .'1983 through June 30, 1985,
indicates that Duo sﬁbmitted' samples and opérationpl reports only
for the period Jahuary, February and March 1983 (CPH Ex. 15).
| A Department of 'Héalth lﬁemorahdum, -dated July 26, 1985,
. writtén by Robert L. ' Frc;)st., District Sanitarian, contains
. info.rﬁation'- reportedly gleaned from Mr. Walter Propps, a resident
of Duo, during a visit on July 17, 1985 _(CPH EX. 14). The
memorandum states that nol pump was presently used in ‘the Duo
system, that water 1is piped from a ground soﬁrce to the.
diétribﬁtion system, that there was no opera'\tor {of the water
‘;_sys'tem], fhat no treatment or storage was prox}ided, 'that -former
.Wai:ér Board people [members] had moved away, and that 13 of 21
houses are occupied by 31 peop1:e using the water. The allegation
in the con'iplaint'that the Duo water system is used by épproximétely
65 individuals on a .year-'round basis appears to be based on Health
" Department, 'Driﬁking Water Divisi_on, Quafterly Report Forms for .t_he
_federa; fiscal years 1983-= 1985, which indicate ‘thai: therelare 65 .
' : popula.tion/coﬁne.c.:t:i'ons; - (CPH ﬁxS. 15 & 16) . Thel notation %65

.
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‘population/cénnections“ is not an assertion_that thefe are 65 users
of the system.f Moreover, the forms appear1t6 have been prepared by
Health Department personnel rather than by Duo. ‘Respondent’s
prehearing exchange' confirms that there are 21 houses in the
community, but sfates two are vacant and that there are 47
' residents of Duo, West Virginia kletter from J. Michael Ahderson,'
Respondent’s counsel, dated February 14, 1991). A map of Duo,
Meadow Bluff District, éreenbrier Couﬁty, West»Virginia, attached
_to a Depaftment 6f Health memorandum, dated December 11, 1989 (CPH
Ex. 36), reflects that‘there are 25 lots in Duo of which three are
vacant and that two houses are vacant.-

'In a ietter, dated August 9, 1985, the State of West
Virginia, by its Department of Health, requested that EPA implement
legal action against Duo and ahother naﬁed water system (CPH'Ex.
16); Both systems wefelgéscribed as persistent violators with whom
it was extremely difficult to deal. The letter indicated that the
major difficulty was finding’a person or persons against whom to
take enforceﬁent action,[sefve process]. It appears that Duo was.
‘restored to the 1list of water systems receiving-bottleS'bn.a
monthly basis from the Deparﬁment of Health in which to collect
sahples for badferiological testing purposes in September 1987 and
by a letter from the Department of Health, addressed to Duo in éare
of Lesiie Ray, Rupert, West Virginia, signed by the pistrict
Sanitarian, dated Octoﬁe; 27, 1987, Duo was informed of the action
'nécessary to bring its systeﬁ into'qompliande with drinking water

regulations (CPHgEx. 18).
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The Duo system was inspected on April 20 and July 6,
1988, during which water samples were collected from two residences

(CPH Ex. 17). Laboratori analysis of the former samplé reportedly

‘resulted in a findihg of 2.2 (presumably coliforms per liter) and

analysis of the latter sample reportedly resulted in a'finding of

. 5,1 (presumably coliforms per liter).¥ Water Bacteriological

Reports, dated April 13, and June 8, 1989, issued by the West
Virginia State.Hygienic Laboratory, reporting anaiyses of samples
collected from residences in Rupert, W.V., on April 10, and Jﬁne.7,
1989, state that coliform organisms were not found (CPH-Exs.‘29 &
32). A report of ana1ysis'of-a sample collected on November 21,

1989, however, states that coliform organisms were found (CPH EX.

35) -

By a letter, dated April 18, 1988, the West Virginia
Department of Health again-requested EPA to take enforcement action

against Duo Water Works for failure to comply with the National

Primary Drinking Water Regulation (CPH Ex. 22). Thereafter, EPA

published a Notice of Proposal to Issue Administrative Order and
Opportunity for a Public Hearing (CPH Ex. 23). The Administrative
order, referred to in the coﬁplaint; Docket No. III~88-023-DS,

dated September 30, 1988, contains findings which, in addition to

setting forth the jurisdictional basis for the order, i.e., that

Respondent is a supplier of pipéd water to' the public for human

4 Laboratory reports reflecting‘thése results are not in the
record. The MCL for microbiological contaminants is based upon the

‘presence or absence of total coliforms in a sample, rather than on

coliform density (40 CFR § 141.63).
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consumptién and a public and community Qater system-as'defined by
the Act ahd reqgulation, state, inter alia; ﬁhat Respondent violated.
40 CFR § '141.14 by allowing its system to exceed the MCL for
coliform bacteria during the three-month period Julyl 1-
September 30, 1982.¥ Additionally, the order alleged that
Respondent violated 40'CFR § 141.zi(b) by failing to anaiyze or
sample for coliform bacteria each month during the periods October
1981 through July 1982, September 1982, and December 1986 through
June 1988; thét,Respondent violated.40 CFR § 141.31(a) by failing
‘to report to fhe State of West Virginia results of monitoring and
analysis for the mentioned monitoring periods; that Respondent
violated 40 CFR § 141.31(b) by failing to report to the State of
West.Virgihia within 48 hours any failure to comply with the
national.'primary drinking water regulation; that Respondent
violated 40 CFR § 141.36 by failing to préVide the pﬁblic and users
of its system with notification of its failure to comply with
VSubbart B (MCLs) .and Subpart 'C (Monitoring aﬁd Analytical
\RequirémentS) of Part 141 during the specified periods; and that
Respondent violated 40 CFR § 141.31(d) by failing to supmit to the

State of'West'Virginia-copiés of each notice of MCL violations for

¥ CPH Ex. 26. No test reports supporting the allegation that
the MCL for coliform bacteria was exceeded during the July-
September 1982 period are in the record and it is noted that Duo is
charged with failing to sample and analyze for coliform bacteria
during the period October 1981-July 1982 and September 1982. Duo
was informed that the MCL for coliform bacteria was exceeded during
this period by a letter from the Department of Health dated
November 22, 1982 (CPH ‘EX. 11).

N
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i - coliform bacteria and monitoripg and analytical violations for
coliform bacteria as referenced above.
| The administrative order determined that 60 days was a
reasonable time for Respondent to achieve cpmpliance with the MCL
fér coliform bacteria and that 30 days was a reasonable time for
Respondént to achieve compliance with_monitoring, reporting, and
public notification requirements. Reépondent was ordered to
submit, within 30 days, plans for remedial action to EPA Region III
and to the West Virginia Department of Health; to implement said
pians and to comply with the MCL for coliform bacterialwithin 60
days; commencing immediately, to sample and analyze for coliform
bacteria in accordance with 40 CFR § i41;21(b) a minimum of once
. eé¢h 3month, three t'i.mes. each calendar quarter; to report the
énalytical results to the State of West Virginia within the first
ten days of'the~month following the month in.which the results were
recgi?ed or within ten déys of the end of the monitoring period
whichever'is the shortest as requi:ed by § 141.31(a); to 6omply_'
with 40 CFR § 141.31(b) by reporting to the State of West Virginia
within 48 hours anf failure to comply with any requirement of the '
national primary drinking water regulatibn, including.monitoring:
coﬁmencing immediately, td notify all persons ﬁefved by Dud,Watef
Works of its failure to comply with the MCL for coliform bacteria
and of_its failure to monitor for coiiform bacteria; to send to EPA
ahd the‘West.Virginia Department‘of Health copies‘éf-representaﬁive
notices to users and to the public,bf éuch féilureé;uénd to report

. monthly to EPA of thé compliance statuf_-".\ ahd_ progress toward




compliance with each of the mentioned requirements. BAs indicated
previously, the complaint alleges that Respondent has violated an
administrative order.

Respondent’s prehearing exchange does not.include any
exhibits and identifies no witnesses other than unnamed residents
of the Town of Duo’ (letter from J. Michael Anderson, Respondent's
counsel, ante at 5). The_letter states that only two or possibly
three of the 47 residents of the town are employed and that the
residents have no means whatsoever to finance a water system. The
letter further states that Duo Water Works is not a business and
has_not been a business for the past ten years, that prior [to that
time] the town had a water pump, electricity for the same and a:

. tank, but that the residents failed to pay. for water service, the
system was shutdown and that the residents now rely on a gravity
feed system to obtain ‘water from an abandoned mine. These
assertions are substantially confirmed by Status kenorts, dated
August 17, 1996, and April 19, 1991, filed by Complainant,vwhich
state,'inter alia, that respondents are a small community of users,
none of whom were officially responsible for operation of the
system when EPA issued its administrative order for compliance;
that the community was originally a coal camp built by a mining
company, that when the mining company left,'the water system'was
given to the community, that since that time almost no maintenance

" has been performed on the system, that the system has deterlorated
.and the treatment system has been abandoned that water currently

‘ \flows from the source by grav1ty without any treatment ‘that Duo is
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a very poor community and that many.of the resideﬁts are unemployed

and are on welfare. . '
This matter was scheduled for hearing on August 23, 1994.
" The hearing was canceled based upon Complainant’s representation
that it was filing a motion for an accelerated decision on
-liability and that, if disposition of the motion resolved.the issue
of liability, no‘adjudicatioh on the penalty would be required
(Requesﬁ‘ for Continuance -of'-Hearing Date, August 10, 1994).. -
'Complainaht filed a motion for an accelerated deéision on liability
on August 10, 1994. ‘The motibn,aileges that. there is no gispute as
to material fact  but that Duo wviolated an identified
administrative' order as alleged in the _complaiht and that
Complainant is entitied_to judgment aéla matfer of law. The motion
is supported_by the affidavits of Robert Lange, an environmental
engineer in the Drinking and Groundwater‘Protection Branch of the
.Wate: Management Division, U.S. EPA, Region III, and of David R.
Thomés, District Engineer, Office of Health'SerQiCés; West Virginia
Department of Health and Human Reéources.‘ Messrs. Lange and Thomas
leaéhlessentially state that, within their respective’agéncies, they
are responsible for and familiar with the. Duo Water Works
enforcemenf matter, that they have never received, and have no
knowledge of their respective agencies ever receiving, remedial
. plans and'éompliance_reports as required by the-adﬁinistrative
order, ﬁhat they have visited the commﬁnity'of.puo:and ipspéctéd

Duo Water Works and found no evidence of Duo having treéted‘its

water or of anyone having sampled or analyzed its water as required
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by the'administrafive\order, and that there is no evidence of Duo
having taken any action to comply with the order.
‘The foregoing recitation constitutes my findings‘of fact

in this matter. Duo has not responded to Complainant’s motion.

. DISCUSSION
Whether 13 of thé 21 houses in Duo are occupied and. thus,
'présnmably there are 13.connections'£o the Duo water system as
indicated ‘in the memorandum, dated July 26, 1985, or 19 occupiéd
houses .and thus, presumably 19 connections to the system as
indicated in the letter from Duo’s- counsel, dated February 14,
1991, is not crucial to EPA’s jurisdiction in this matter. The
regulétion, 40 CFR § 141.2 (supra note 2), defines a “"community
water system" as a "public water system" which serves at least 15
service connections used by year-round residents or regularly
serves at least. 25 Year-round residents. -The cited memorandum
‘states that there were 31. people using the 'Qéter and the
February 14 letfer states that there were 47 residenfs of Duo.
- These numbers prima facie exceed the "25 year-round residents"
requiremenf.'lIt ié true that neither the memorandum nor the letter
state that the users and residents were "year-round". It is also
" true that the critical date fof' jurisdictional purposes is
September 50; 1988, the daté the.administrative order was isSued.
Nevertheless, there is no evidence the residents did notjreside in
Duo'"year-round".and no evidence toiéuggest that the number of

residents‘oruuSers of the'system did not equal or exceed 25 at'the
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time of the issuance of the administrative order.‘ it is concluded
that Duo was a coﬁmunity water'system as defined by 40 CFR § 141.2
and that EfA had jurisdiction tp issue the_administrative ordér
identified in the complaint. |

The findingslrecited above esﬁablish that Duo has not
complied with the administrative 6rder and that a finding "of
iiability 'is appropriate. The only question .is whether the
uhincorporated cooperative association known as "Duo Water Works",
which acquiréd title to the Water Plant Lot and improvements
“"thereon in the Town or community of Duo in 1959, still.exists.y
The answer filed on Duo’s behalf dehied the existence of an entity -
known as “Dué Water Works", The apparent difficulties in_serviﬁg
~ the complaint, the several individuals purportédly representing Dho
to whom cofrespondence concerning complianée wiﬁh the Act and
regulations was addréssed, and the fact that the watér system is in'
a state of disrepair and partial abandonment tend to support a
finding: that Duo Water Works no longer exists.  Moreover,
Complainant has ackhowledged that at the time the‘adﬁinistrétive
order was issued, no one.waé officially responsible for operation
-of the 5ystemi(anté'at 9). Be that as it may, Coﬁplainant has
obliquely indicated that it does not intend to seek é_penalty and
‘the- fact that.\the ~association against whom the action was

instituted may no longer exist; is not a bar to a finding of

, ¥ It is noted that a list of property owners in Duo, West
Virginia (CPH Ex. 36) states that water source and treatment
facilities are on properties owned by Westvaco, Rupert, West
Virginia.
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liability. cOmplainéht's motion for an accelerated decision as to

liability will be granted.

Order
It having been determined that Respondent, Duo water
Works, has violated an administrative order as alleged in the
complaint! Complainant’s motion that Respondent be found liable for

'the:violation alleged is granted.

Dated this /é day of- August 1996.

Spenc T. Nissen
Administrative Law Judge




~ This is to certify that the original of this ORDER GRANTING
MOTION FOR PARTIAL ACCELERATED DECISION, dated August 16, 1996, in
re: Duo Water Works, Dkt. No. SDWA-III-006, was mailed to the
Regional Heafing Cierk,v Reg. III, and a copy was mailed to

Respondent and Complainant (see list of addréssees).
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Helen F. Handon
Legal Staff Assistant

DATE: A 16, 1996
ADDRESSEES :

J. Michael Anderson, Esq.
702 Main Street

P.O. Box 706

Rainelle, WV 25962

Bruce E. Byrd, Esq.
Assistant Regional Counsel
Office of Regional Counsel
U.S. EPA, Reg. III

841 Chestnut Building
Philadelphia, PA 19107

Ms. Lydia A. Guy
Regional Hearing Clerk
U.S. EPA, Region III
841 Chestnut Building
Philadelphia, PA 19107




